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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT

The trustees present thefr annual report together with the financial statements and auditor's report of the charitable
company, The Waldegrave Trust (the "Trust") for the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023. The annual report
serves the purpcses of both a Trustees’ report, a Directors' report and Strategic repert under company law.

The principal activity of the Trust during the year was to oparate a single secondary school, Waldegrave School,
focated in Twickenham.

Waldegrave School was originally a local authority operated secondary school in Richmond upon Thames, founded
in 1980. It converted to academy status on 1 August 2012 and the charitable company was incorporated on 4 July
2012, Waldegrave School operates twe priority areas, A and B, of a ractangular caichment area, across a
designated local ares,

Waldegrave School is a girls only school from 11-16 and a mixed provigion for sixth form 17-18. It had pupil
numbers of 1,463 in the school census on October 2022, As at cansus date, there were 378 students in sixth form
of whigh 288 were girls and S0 boys.

The Trust is governed by the rules and regulations set down in its updated Memorandum and Articles of Asscciation
dated & April 2022,

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT
Constitution

The Trust is an exempt charlty and a company limited by guarantee, not having share capital. Certain governors of
the Trust are aiso the trustees to the charitable company for the purposes of company law.

The current trustees of thg charitable company are included in the Reference and Administrative Datails on page 1.

Members' liability

Every member undertakes to contribute an amount not exceeding £10 to the assets of the company in the event of
the company being wound up during the period of membership, or within one year thereafter,

Trustees' indemnities

The school hes taken out a combined insurance policy that includes buildings and contents, and liability insurance
covering employees, (including teaching and administrative staff and governors), and third party cover arising from
negligent acts, errors and omissions whera the school has a legal liability, The limit of indemnity for the main liability
cover is £25m and for governors the Indemnity is £1m, Other cover included in the pelicy is for personal accident,
travel, and engineering plant and equipment, The total premium cost is £31,285 (2022: £28,087). In addltion, the
school has in place, cyber insurance at a premium cost of £4,384 (2022: £3,930),

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of trustees

The governcrs have set up procedures including a skills' audit that will enable regular raviews of the mix of skiils
that should be available to the governors. New governors will then be sought with these skills, either as additional
governocrs or replacemsnts when existing governors stand down. It is anticipated that governors will be drawn from
the local community being efther parents or guardians of pupils at the school or others that have shown an interest
in the future wellbeing of the school and its pupils. Recruitment is through a combination of approaches to
individuals with known skills and by wider communications to those within Twickenham and Middlesex.

To ensure representation of parants on the governing hody, there are six places allocated for them. Parents who
have a child at the school can salf-nominate and are selected in accordance with the Trust's Scheme of Delegation,
There are also three places allocated fo staff governers, plus the Headteacher.

New governors will be appointed by the existing governors for a period of four years. At the end of a four year term,
retiring governcrs are eligible for ra-election for a further term,
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of trustees

New governors receive information packs and meet with the Chair of Governors and/or Headteacher for an
Inducticn and to discuss the role of governors and the requirements of the school and the Trust. At the induction
meeting, key documents are provided for the new governor. Individual governors attend training courses and
conferences organised by appropriate bedies in order to ensure their knowledge and understanding is fully up lo
date. The schoof is alsc a member of the National Governance Association which provide regular updates to all
governors on regulations and best practice,

Organisational structure

The trustees have responsibility for setting and monitoring the overall strategic direction of the charitable company,
approving dscisicns reserved to trustees and appointing key members of staff,

The trustess meet as a board three times each year. All decisicns reserved ic the trustees are taken by the board
as a whole, Certain decisions are delegated to the Local Govarning Body (L.GB) and/or other senior leaders as
defined in the Scheme of Delegation, The LGB, which Is made up of the trustees, who are alsc governors, parent
and staff governors meets four times each year to conslder individual school matters, items recommended to them
from sub-committees and recommend decisions to the board of trustees, Sub committees meet five or six times
each year to consider detailed matters and recommend decisions to the LGB.

Thera are two such sub-committees:
+ Finance and Resources Committee
+ Achievement Committee

Trustees of the Waldegrave Trust

Remit;
The board of trustees is responsible for:

Monitoring the performance of the school within the Trust;

Managing the Trust's resources effactively,

Appointing the Headteacher,

Ensuring that the Trust complies with charity and company law;

Operating the Trust in accordance with the Funding Agreement that has been signed with the Secretary of
State; and

= Exercising reasonable skill and care in carrying out their duties.

& ® 9 . ®

Membership:
Mrs C A Davis
Mr M QO'Brien
Ms F Perrow
Mr A Tanner
Ms E Tehgue
Mrs vV Williams

Finance and Resources Comimittee

Remit:
+ To ensure that the school conducts its financial affalrs in an organised and efficient manner, observes good
standards of financial stewardship to aveld corruption, mismanagement or maladministration;
* To ensure that all available funding Is used to meet the school's aims, including educational pricrities as
identified in the School Development Plan {SDP);
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)

QOrganisational structure
Remit {continued}:

To undertake the monitoring, evaluating and reviewing of the budget and patterns of spending, including
banchmarking against other schools:

To approve virements (changes of allocations between budget headings) of £25,000 - £50,000. Virements
of £25,000 or less are delegated to the Headteacher. Virements of £50,000 or more require the LGB
approval;

To ensure that adequate insurance for all considerable risks is maintained:

Yo ensure compliance with the Education and Skills Funding Authority's (ESFA) Academies Trust Handbook
and the schools' funding agreement with ESFA,;

To oversee, monitor and keep under review the school's financial procedures, including the Controls
Assurance Statement and compliance with FMSIS (Financial Management Standard in Schools) and make
any necessary recommendations for change to the LGB or board as appropriate;

To overses, monitor and keep under review the schaol's risk register and mitigating actions and to highlight
any concerns to the LGB or board as appropriate;

To challenge and support the Headteachar on all matters relating to the school premises, grounds, security
and health and safety, reporting to the LGB any significant changes in practice, policy or breaches/
accidents;

To carry out regular inspections of the premises and grounds, including periodic inspections of buiidings,
plant and equipment and approve the annual statement of priorities for maintenance and development;

To inform the LGB of the results of inspections and priorities, Copies of risk assessments will be circulated
where relevant;

To oversee the procurement of contracts for services to the school e.g. cleaning, catering;

To oversee, monitor and keap under review the Heallh & Safety Policy, Lettings Policy and Charging Policy
for the Governing Body;

To craft medium and long term plans relating to the repair, maintenance and development of premises and
recommend action to the LGB;

To oversee and keep under review the staffing structure in consultation with the Headteacher;

To agree the staffing establishment and structure for the school (teaching and support) in refation to the
budget and the school development / improvement plan;

On behalf of the board and LGB {o oversee, monitor and keep under review policies relating to pay,
performance management, staff absence, staff discipline, grievance, capability and other relevant
employee related matters and make recommendations to the LGB or board as appropriate;

To oversee the recruitment and appointment procedure for all staff, including ensuring compliance with
safer recruitment requirements and best practice;

To overses the process leading to staff reductions and redundancy;

To keep under review staff work/life balance, working conditions and well-being, including the monitaring of
staff absence;

To consider any appeal against a decision on pay grading or pay awards;

To assume the responsibilities of the Audit Committee reflecting there Is currently only one school in the
Trust; and

To receive an annual General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) compliance repert from the Data
Frotection Officer (DPO).

Membership:

Mr J Bassi

Mr 8 Byrne (Resigned 21 November 2022)

Mrs 5 Davies (Appointed 28 November 2022)

Mr C King (Vice Chair)

Mr M C'Brien (Chair)

Miss R Pugh (Staff Governor)(Appointed 11 October 2022)
Mr A Tanner

Ms E Tongue

Mrs V Williams
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Achievement Commiftee

Remit:

The committee will oversee:

v

Student achievement across all student groups and the quality of teaching, ensuring the school provides a
high-quzlity learning experience and delivers a broad and balanced curriculum in keeping with the schocl's
aims, all pupil needs and legal requiremants; and

Student wefl-being, child protection, and standards of behaviour and attendance, ensuring that the school
provides a safe environment that empowers all studenis to contribute fully to the school and wider
community.

The committee will monitor and evaluate:

School standards, progress and achievement data, and statutory target setting, including analysing the
performance of all student groups, subjects and key stages, making relevant comparisons to local and
national data and analysing trends, and advising the LGB ¢n these areas;

Child protection and safeguarding policias and procedures;

The school's contribution to student well-being, including the extent to which students feel safe, adopt
healthy lifestyles and centribute te the school and wider community;

Standards of behavlour, the impact of exclusions In the school, attendance patterns and trends, and
associated policies;

Any matter relating to the school's curriculum, including:

- compliance with statutory requirements;

- the appropriateness and effectiveness of the curriculum for students with additional needs, including
responsipilities for students with Special Educaticnal Nesds (SEN) and disabilifles;

- provision for, and progress and attainment of vulnerable groups, e.g. looked after children, young carers,
and the effectiveness of any intervention strategies;

- the quality of teaching and leaming; and

- pravision and policies for-sex and relationships education, religious education and collective worship.
Changes to curriculum design and delivery, considering any financial or staffing tmplicaticns and making
recommendations to LGB;

The views of students and how these are taken into account, including acting as the link to the Student
Parliament;.

Policies and provision for engagement of parents with the scheol, parental views and how these are
considered, and recemmend ways in which home-schocl links can be developed;

Effectivenass of communications with parents including statutory reguirements such as the complaints
palicy, plus nen-statutory approaches such as the website;

Effectiveness of partnerships with other schools, external agencies and the community including business,
to improve the school, extend the curriculum and increase the range and quality of learning experiences for
pupils;

Community links and community use of the school, manitaring and avaluating the school's contribution to
promoting community cohasion;

Implementation of School Development Plan and action points from Schael Improvement Partner in areas
relevant to the Committee’s remit;

Arrangements for educational visits, including the appointment of a named coordinator; and

The school's work on Eguality, Diversity and inclusion.

The committee will propose recommendations for action or policy in any of the above areas as required.
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Membership:

Ms A Amponsah (Appointed on 11 October 2022)

Mrs R Birrell (Appointed on 26 September 2022; Resigned on 9 May 2023)
Ms E Boynton (Resigned on 11 November 2022)

Mrs A Davis (Resigned as Chair on 10 May 2023)

Mr A Godfrey (Staff Gavernor)

Mrs C Jones (Appointed on 28 November 2022)

Ms E Tongue (Headteacher)

Mr M Vickery

Mrs V Walsh (Appointed Chair on 10 May 2023)

Additionally, groups of governors are established to consider specific issues and make recommendations to the
|.GB, these Committees include the Pay Committee, Discipline Committee and the Admissions Committes,

Ms Elizabeth Tengue, Headteacher at Waldegrave Schoal is the accounting officer for the Trust and works closely
with both the other governors and the senior staff of The Waldagrave Trust.

The day-to-day management of the Trust rests with the Headteacher who has overall responsibility for the school.
The Headteacher is responsible for establishing a Senior Leadership Team, Including the Business Manager and
the Deputy Headteachers.

Decisicns are taken at meetings of the LGB in consideration of reports and recommendations from governors'
committees, the Headteacher, the School Business Manager and other senlor leaders. Members of staff, in addition
to the Headteacher and Deputy Headieachers attend committee mestings to present reports in their areas of
responsibility, for example curriculum development and safeguarding.

A panel of governors undertakes the annual performance review of the Headteacher and moniters performance and
achisvements against targets. The Pay Committee also undertakes to scrutinise the process of performance
revlews of all teachers. The Committee decides on pay pregrassion in line with the pay policy.

Individual governors on the LGB are linked to strategic areas of the work of the senior leaders and the school. They
visit the schaool regularly. This link forms a vital part of communication betwesn lhe school staff and the LGB,
Gavernor sub-commitiees assume responsibility for areas of school life, for example health and safety, special
educational needs. Monitoring and review will occur through the sub-committee meetings. Annually, governors
discuss and analyse examination results.

Each year the Senior Leadership Team prepares the School Development Plan (SDP) and this is subsequently
presented to governors for consideration, chalienge and approval, The plan details the key priorities to improve the
school academic targels and includes strategic aims, as well as initiatives to further develop the school community.,
An objective of the leadership of each school is to ensure all round excellence within the school ang the best
possible education for students as well as good working conditions for staff, The SDP is supported by departmental
plans from each area of the School. These are supported by Personal Improvement Plans which form part of the
performance development (Appraisal} process, Once agreed, management has the responsibllity of delivering the
plan and reporting progress on a regular basis to the various committees and ultimately the LGB,

Co-ordinated with the objectives of the SDP is the annual financial plan and budget, which is the responsibility of the
Headteacher and School Business Manager. It Is presented to the Finance and Rescurces Committee for
consideration and challenge prior to making a recommendation to the LGB, Once approved, the School Business
Manager monitors income and expenditure and will reguiarly report the financial status of the school to the
Headteacher, Finance and Resources Committes, and the LGB. The scheol budget continues to be squeszed due
rising staff costs for both teaching and non-teaching staff, the pressures to maintain and improve the school
buildings and site, and due to rising energy, recruitment and general costs. To ensure a long term plan is in place,
the School Business Manager prepares a three year plan and works with the Finance and Resources Committee to
ensure the budgat delivers value for money, supports the school's strategic aims and builds up reserves.
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Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The salary range for all staff paid on the leadership spine will be determined by refarence to the provisions of the
School Teachers' Pay Conditions Document (STPCD) and will include consideration of any breader responsibilities
that attach to the role,

The Individual School Range (ISR) of seven points for the Headteacher wili also be determined by reference to the
school size and the appropriate positioning of the pay range of any Deputy or Assistant Headteacher at the school,
as specified in the STPCD, The Governing Body will only re-determine the ISR in the circumstances specified in the
STPCD,

The five point salary range for Deputy Headteachers and Assistant Headteachers shall be determined by reference
to the STPCD, taking into account the appropriate positioning of the pay range of the Headteacher and any other
member of the leadership group at the school. The Governing Body will enly re-determine the pay range of a
Deputy or Assistant Headteacher in circumstances specified in the STPCD.

Trade union facility time
Ne empioyees were members of any relevant trade unfons in the years ended 31 August 2022 or 31 August 2023,
Therefore, none of their tima was spent on unien activities,

Related parties and co-operation with other organisations
The Trust does not currently malntain business relationships with any connected parties.

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

Objects and aims

The Trust's objective is to advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in particular but without
prejucice to the generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing a
school offering a broad and balanced curriculum.

Charitable activities
The charltable objectives of the Trust are set down in the governing document as follows:

To previde exceptional learning opportunities for our students by:

* Outstanding teaching and learning. Tho scheol aims to provide outstanding teaching to promote
intellectual challenge and the highest possikle achievement for all students;

* Care for the individual. The structures and ethos of the school ensure care for the individual and support
the learning of each student;

*+ Afit place to learn. The school aims to provide an inspirational and well run environment in which students
can learn and grow; and

* Aspirational leadership. Every leader in the school keeps their area of responsibility under review and
strives to be the best,

Waldegrave Vision
Everycne enjoys learning, feels valued and experiences success.

Waldegrave Mission
To empower us all through:
* Creat teaching and learning;
Posltive relationships;
Being the best we can he;
Embracing the new;
Great leadership;
Being open-minded and respectful;
Sharing commen vaiues and practices; and
Developing strong partnerships

4« & ¢ & = = ®

Waldegrave School Rule
We show mutual respect and understanding for everyone, through courteous and considerate behaviour at all
times,
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Public henefit

The trustees have taken The Charity Commission's specific guidance on public benefit (contained within the
guidance document “The Advancement of Ecucation for the Public Benefit") into consideration in preparing their
statements on public benefii contained within this trustees’ annual report.

Benefits & Beneficiaries

In accordance with its charitable objectives, the charitable company strives to advance the education of the pupils
attending the school. The charitable company’s primary beneficiaries are therefore the pupils, and benefits to pupils
are provided through continuing to maintain a high standard of education throughout the school.

Trustees’ Assessment of Public Benefit
In order to determine whether or not the charitable company has fulfilled its charitable objectives for public benefi,
the frustees gather evidence of the success of the Trust's activities,

STRATEGIC REFORT
Achievements and performance

The governars use the foilowing key measures to assess the success of the activities of the charitable company:
* Headteacher reports to governors covering all aspects of schoo} operations, performance and staff and
pupll welfare;
*+ Self-evaluation of all areas of the school against Ofsted criteria as shown in the Self Evaluation Form
(SEF);
* Use of external verification of all areas of school improvemant through Scheol Improvement Partner:
* Examination results measured against targets set at the beginning of each academic year and national
benchmarks;
Progress made against the Schocl Development Plan and budgets;
Internal departmental monitoring by middle and senior managers;
Performance development (Appraisal) procedures; and
School Improvement partner commissioned by LGB to review schoo! evaluation.

Detalls of performance for the year can be found on page 11 in the review of key performance Indicators.

Financial review

Most of the Trust's income comes from the Education and Scheol Funding Agency (ESFA) in the form of recurrent
grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes. These grants and the associated expenditure are shown
as restricted general funds in the statement of financial activities.

The school also recelves grants from the ESFA for capital and in accordance with the Charities SORP 'Accounting
and Reporting by Charities’, such grants are shown In the statement of financial activities as restricted Income in the
fixed asset fund.

Other sources of income are 'unreslricted’ and these are mainly monies collected from parents for schoal trips,
outings and other extracurricular activities, Also included in 'unrestricted' funds are voluntary donations made by
parents to support school life and lettings income.

Total income for the year was £10,509,448 (2022: £9,557,851) and total expenditure was £9,893,962 (2022
£9,888,949) resulting in net income of £615,486 (2022: net expenditure of £331,098),

The Waldegrave Trust held a surplus balance in restricted funds at 31 August 2023 of £1,681,102 (2022: surplus of
£1,349,860) excluding the fixed asset funds but including a pensicn reserve asset of £nil (2022: asset of £82,000)
and unrestricted funds of £1,358,536 (2022: £869,009). The governors believe the fund balances are adequate to
provide sufficient working capital in times of possible future funding turbulence, to provide a cushion fo deal with
unexpecied emergencies, meet the required centributions to the pension plans as instructed by the local authority/
UK Chancellor, and ta fulfil the objectives detalled in the SDP,
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FRS 102 requires an annual accounting valuation of the Local Government Pansion Scheme (see Note 24) at 31
August each year, Its purpose is to facilitate consistent comparison of pension positions between employers and
has no effect of the employer cash ceniributions to the scheme. The Scheme is subject to g friennial funding
valuation {last completed 31 March 2022 and updated to 31 August 2023 by a qualified Independant actuary), the
purpose of which is to assess the on-going financial pesition of the Fund and to determine the employers’ cash
contribution rates for 3 years. It will aim to ensure that each employer's share of the Fund's assets together with the
expected investment returns and contributions will be sufficient to meel the Fund's future benefit payments,

The value of the defined benefit pension scheme as required by FRS 102 has shown a significant movement in the
year from a asset of £82,000 at 31 August 2022 to an asset of £nil at 31 August 2023 after restricting the asset by
£1.01m to take account of the asset ceiling.

Roeserves policy

The governors review the reserves level annually. This review encompasses income and expenditure streams, the
need to match income with commitments and the nature of reserves. The governors believe that the funding
received in any one year should be used to support the childran on roll at the time but realise it is prudent to carry a
certain lavel of reserves. The governors have been increasing the level of reserves over the last three years to
support planned capital investmeant in the school infrastructure which is anticipated to take place in 2024,

The level of cash held will be used for, including but not limited to, sufficient working capital to enable the school to
cover delays between spending and receipt of monies such as grants, to accumulate funds towards a captital
project, to manage unfunded Increases in student numbers and to provide a reserve to deal with unexpected
emergencies,

Whilst the school has maintained significant investment in improving the infrastructure of the site over the last four
years, the age of some of the bulldings can result in financial and operational pressures which would be an axample
of such unexpected emergencies. Maintaining staffing levels due to challenges in recruitment or meeting increasad
pay and pension costs following late negotiations would be other examples. In addition, all schools, businesses and
individuals have been impacted by the global rise in the cost of living. This has impacted utility prices as wel! as the
cost and availability of most resources and services. We anticipate that financial Impact of increased staff costs as
well as managing higher utility and other costs will continug to impact future years. We are satisfled that we have
sufficient financial resources in-year, combined with our accumulated reserves, to manage this situation and not
impact the Trust's ability to remain a going concern.

The Trust’s unrestricted funds as at 31 August 2023 were £1,358,536 (2022; £869,009) and the Trust's restricted
funds (excluding pension reserve and restricted fixed asset reserves) were £1,681,102 (2022: £1,349,860),

Academy Trust funds that can only be realised by disposing of tanglble fixed assets were £22,056,289 (2022
£22,263,672),

The Academy Trust's share of the Local Government Pension Scheme currently has a asset of £nil (2022; asset of
£82,000) after restricting the asset by £1.01m to take account of the asset ceiling.

Disclosure of funds is alsa provided in note 18 to the financia! statements.

Investment policy

The governors' investment powers are set down in the Memorandum and Articles of Asscciation which nermit the
investment of manies of the Trust that are not immediately required for its purposes In such investments as may be
thought fit subject to any restrictions which may from time to time be imposed or raquired by law,

The Trust's current policy Is to invest surplus funds in short-term cash deposits for fixed pariods of no longer than 99
days. Periodically, management will review interest rates and compare with other investment cpportunitiag, Any
change In policy requires the approval of gavernors. In this academic year of operation, it was agreed that the risk is
diversified and surplus funds are held in interest bearing instant access accounts in an altermative Institution to the
current account,
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Key performance Indicaicrs

This year has seen not only a continued focus on enhancing our already strong pastoral and well-being provision
across all year groups, but also a refocusing for all members of the school community back onte our core business;
learning, Most of the wark done in the precading year focused en the support for our young people returning back io
schoel from Covid closures and lockdowns. 2022/23 saw the first opportunity to get everyone excited about
pedagogy again.

We also embedded our Key Stage Hubs during 2022/23 which has been integral to providing dedicated and
targeted advice, suppart and guidance to each student in spaces that they feel confident and relaxed in. Following
Covid disruption we have worked with students and families to ensure regular attendance at school. We are
delighted that the school is partnered with the NHS through the trailblazers programme which supports studenis’
emotional well-being. Through this, we have also been awarded the Silver Attachmeant Awareness Award which has
involved all staff CPD as well as advanced fraining for our attachment lead. We are now working towards our Geld
Award.

Wa continually strive to improve our provision and ensure our curriculum reflects the changing aspirations of our
students and evolving demands of further education providers and the workplace, This year we added an A Level in
Government and Politics which has proven popular with our year 12 students, and with the introduction of a two
week timetable, we have alsc been able to enhance our provision in the main school offering critical thinking,
additional lahguage opportunities and additional teaching hours in core subjects. We have also increased our
careers provision including providing more individual careers guidance, indusiry falks and work experience
opportunities, as well as establishing even more links with further education providers and natlonal employers,

We are proud of our school slte and facilities, and maintaining and improving them remains a focus in every
academic year. In 2022/23, we built our new sixth form learning centre where students can complete quiet study,
access our academic mentors, subject specialists and careers advice, We also refurbished our DT facilities
including setting up a new CAD suite to support 2D drawing, computer alded learning and theory lessons, Our
chromebock roll out programme is now fully embedded with each student being offered the opportunity to own a
chromebock and enjoy opportunities for enhanced digital learning whilst maintaining our core, tradftional teaching
methods. We also refurbished toilets, continued our extensive window replacement programme and enhanced our
signage and site accessibility,. We also invested in significant WiFi and network upgrades which will future proof our
schoaol for the medium term.

As & school, we are committed to welcoming all members of our community to eur school. Follewing Covid, we
have enjoyed more families and friends on site through information, careers and pastoral events as well as
concerts, plays, sport and much more, We are fertunate that our active PTA has organised some excellent, well
attended events which have helped forge a strong community spirit as well as ralsing funds to enhance our
students’ experience at Waldegrave.

Waldegrave is committed to promoting and celebrating a diverse, equal and inclusive community, Whilst this is a
result of all our behaviours, we encourage understanding and discussion through high guality staff CP and a
thorough PSHE (PDC) currculum which includes all students completing Show Racism the Red Card training. As
employers we are alsc committed to recruitment and HR practices that are inclusive and fair. We value student
feedback and promote students leading sehool improvement through our School Parliament. This year the School
Parliament has focused on enhancing the school's environmental and sustainability practices, as well as continuing
our work around equality, diversity and inclusion, and supporting local and national charities. In 2022/23, studenis
attended the regional Eco Conference congidering how to achieve the aims of Let's Go Zero

Finally, we want to congratulate our examination cohoris on their outstanding results and excellent destinations,
which for most, was achieved in thelr first ever external examination process. They showed resitience, hard wark
and a love of learning that was Insplrational, Al our staff and students have worked excepticnally hard, supporting
each other and embracing extra curricular activities and challenges. A summary of our school year truly is cur motto
— Enjoy, Achieve, Empowaer.

-10 -
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Key performance indicators

Kay achievements in our school this year include:

Waldegrave School continues to be oversubscribed with significant demand for places in years 7 and 12;
Robust financial management and scrutiny, with a focus on value for meney and transparency of financial
performance;

An increase in the school's financial reserves, providing increased security for future years and an ability to
self- finance future capital development;

Completion of our chromebook roliout has taken place and has been well received by students, staff and
families, Our commitment to ensuring each child learning is digitally secure as well as ensuring traditiona!
learning metneds are maintained has been supported through staff CPD and a sharing of best practice;
Developmeant of our pastoral provision through being a NHS trailblazer school and through gaining a Silver
Award on Attachment Awareness,

Our drop down day initiative continued in 2022/23 offering a wide range of activities to either complement
studants’ learning or broaden their extracurricular experience;

Significant redevelopment of the-school site including the completion of phase 2 of the new window
programme, improve signage and accessibility, refurbished toilets for years 10 and 11, a new state-of-the-
art CAD suite and refurbished DT fadilitles;

We have also Invasted in our Sixth Form creating a Sixth Form learning centre to provide dedicated study
space and increased acadsmic mentoring;

During the summer, we improved our sports facllities by refurbishing the sports hali and resurfacing the
outdoor nethall courts;

Celebrating diversity and equality throughout the schoal community continued this year. High quality
training at senior leadership level was completed as weil as workshops for students;

Our student pariiament and eco team have driven forward whole school Initiatives to improve our
community and ensure student voice is heard, and

Qutstanding results at GCSE and A-level demonstrates a whole school commitrment to excellent teaching
which has been underpinned by a commitment to the latest pedagogical practices. This has resulted in
axcellent sixth form destinations across a wide range of degrees and further education courses.
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)

Waldegrave School GCSE Results Five Year Trend

Please note that due to changes in the examinations, the results in 2020 and 2021 are not directly comparable with
the other years due to the Covid-19 pandemic. The 2020 results were based on Centre Assessed Grades and 2021
results were based on Teacher Assessed Grades rather than the normal examination route.

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Number of students in progress meaguras 202 204 197 193 200
Attainment 8 _ 84 66 67 85 65
5 GCSEs including English and maths at] 88% 90% 92% 90% 92%
Grades 4+
5 GCSEs inciuding English and maths atl 71% 76% 81% 74% 76%
Grades 5+
GCSEs Gradss 1-8 100% 100% 99% 100% 100%
GCSEs Grades 7-9 50% 53% 58% 83% 48%
English Baccalaureate (4+ English and Maths) 50% 81% 58% 58% 45%
English Baccalaureate (5+ English and Maths) 50% 54% 51% 47% 38%
Entering English Baccalauresate 70% 653% 52% 61% 56%
Pupil Premium Students achleving Grades 4-9 77% 68% 81% 61% 77 %
in hoth English and Maths

Students, including key groups (SEN, Disadvantaged) made good progress in all curriculum areas regardless of
thelr prior attainment. Atfalnment is well above national average in all'elaments.
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)

Waldegrave School A Level Results Five Year Trend
The table below shows the cumulative results for our A Level results,

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Number of students in progress data 193 193 180 193 186
Average Crade . B+ B+ A- B+ B
A 19% 19% 22% 25% 11%
A'-A ' 51% 51% 55% 54% 43%
A¥-B 78% 78% 84% 80% 71%
A*-C 95% 95% 94% 93% 88%
A-D 96% 96% 98% 98% 96%
A*-E 100% 100% 100% 100% 99%
ALPS Grade 1 1 1 2 n/a

Achlevement across the vast majority of subjects was once again high and well above national averages. 43% of all
grades were A*/A and 48 students were awarded all A¥A grades, including 3 who achieved a full complemant of A*
grades. This is a fantastic outcome, especially considering this cohort did not sit their GCSEs and this is the first set
of public exams since the pandemic where no mitigations have been putin place.

Destinations were similarly imprassive, with 73% of students gaining entry o thelr firm choice universifies, This
included 3 students achieving places at Oxbridge, as well as 1 going on to study Medicine and another 2 for
Veterinary Science. We are also supportive of students following other pathways and were delighted that 6 students
achieved places on Art Foundation courses,

Plans for future periods

In 2021, a new 3 year Strategic Plan was agreed which places community at its heart following the disruption to
regular routines that has led fo communities globally feeling disconnected. It is important that we support our
students to rebuild social connections and strengthen our partnerships with parents and the local community.

For 2021-24, the whaole school sirategic intents are:

» Community outreach and Partnerships strengthen our school and widen the impact we can have for all of
our stakeholders.

« Wellbeing of staff and students is at the heart of our school and we recognise that emaotional wellbeing and
academic achievement are linked and are a priority for ail,

« Curriculum meets the needs of all learners, is engaging and demanding, prepares students for an ever
changing world, inspires a desire from students for subject expertise and ensures the development of the
whole child.

* Teaching and Leaming excellence is nurtured through collaboration, utilising research and new
technologies where appropriate, and develops the skills of indspendence and orobiem solving neaded for
the future success of all cur students.

+ Tachnology and digital learning fully supports all learning and enables our students to become highly
digitally literate, expert researchers, communicators and users of the tools available,

+ Leadership of the schoo! robustly analyses performance to ensure sustained improvement, reaches out fo
ihe wider sector for expertise and challenge, Is ready for change, listens well and resources the school
sffectively for all stakeholders.
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)

Principal risks and uncertainties
The governcrs malntain a risk register which is a fiving document and regularly reviewed,

Gavernor sub-committees have the responsibility for monitering the Trust's exposure to individual risks that are
assigned to them within the following categories:

Strateglc risks;
Governance risks;
Financial risks;
Operationat risks,
Compliance risks; and
Reputational risks.

2 ® ¢ = s =

All risks are assessed and awarded grades that indicate "likelihocd” and “potential impact”. Steps to control and
mitigate risks are also well documented,

The governcrs have [dentified the following key risks to the Trust:

+ Continued impact, financlal and non-financial, surrounding the uncertainty regarding inflation/ cost of living,

« Increased staffing and related costs eg. salaries, pensicns, well-being;

« Pressures on recruitment in key subjects and specialisms In the local area, and in competing against
industries who offer mare hybrid working; and

« Pressures on budget in maintaining and refurbishing old buildings;

Governors manage the financial risk via the Finance and Resources Committee which sees regular updates of the
budget monitor report. Financial pressures on the budget are planned to be mitigated through ensuring centinued
value for money across all areas. Additional parental donations and income generated from the school facilities will
continue, There Is a critical incident plan in place which is regularly reviewed.

Nor-financial risks are mitigated through a clear and open system of SLT meetings, Chairs of Governors meetings,
sub-committee meetings and LGB meetings where a range of topics are discussed and minuted, The risk register is
regularly reviewed by the Finance and Rescurces Committee which prompts a dialogue surrounding non-financial
changes affecting the school and education in general.

The Trust takes estate management serlously following the recommendation of Good Estates Management in
Schools (GEMS). The Trust's estate is safe and well maintained, complying with relevant regulations and best
practice. We have a clear estates strategy that Is shared with stakeholders and we invest not only in robust
maintenance but in significance estates Improvement each year. The Trust invests in its estate through a number of
means including delegated grants, donations and successful Condition Improvement Fund (CIF) grants.

Core Values of the Trust

The school develops its own vision and values;

Pyts teaching and learning at the heart of what we do;

Teachers and leaders model excellent practice in and out of the classrocm;

Teachers and leaders are empowered in their roles and careers through excellent and continuing
Continuing Professional Development (CPD); and

5. We work positively with local schools to support the wider community.

Rl

The future development of the Trust is detailed In the SDP, approved by the LGB in the Autumn 2022. In the plan,
there are clear objectives with specific and measurable success criteria laid oul. These are evaluated by Governors
regularly.

Fundraising
The Trust's primary source of funding comes from the UK Government. The Trust does not carry out any aclive

fundraising activities other than for external charities. We do recelve voluntary donations from the PTA and other
parties.
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)

Auditor
The auditor, RSM UK Audit LLP, is deemed to be reappointed under section 487(2) of the Companies Act 2006,

Statement as to disclosure of information to auditors

The trustees have confirmed that, as far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the
auditor is unaware. Each of the trustees has confirmed that they have taken all the steps that they ought to have
taken as trustees in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that it has
been communicated to the auditor.

The trustees' report is approved by order of the board of trustees and the stralegic report (included therein) is
approved by the board of trustees at a meeting on 13/11/2023..... and signed on its behalf by:

rs C A Davis Mr A Tanner
Trustee and and Co-Chair of Governors Trustee and Co-Chair of Governors

< 5=



THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Scope of responsibility

As trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring the Trust has an effective and appropriate
system of control related to financial and non-financial risks, Such a system Is designed to monitor, manage and
mitigate rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook and competancy
framework for governance.

The board of trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility of the Trust anc Waldegrave School to the
accounting officer for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial
management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assignea to it in the funding agreement
between the Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. The accounting officer is responsible for reporting to the
board of trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The Information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Raport. The board of
trustees met three times this year, attendance at the meetings was as follows. This was supplemented through
regular weekly meeting with the Co-Chairs of Governors and the Headteachar and ad-hoc meeting of the Co-Chairs
of Governors with the Deputy Heads and Business Manager where appropriate.

Trustees Meetings aftended Out of possible
Mrs C A Davis (Trustee and and Co-Chair of Governors) 3 3
Ms F Perrow (Trustee) 3 3
Mr A Tanner {Trustee and Co-Chair of Governors) 3 3
Ms E Tongue (Trustee, Governer and Accounting Officer) 3 3
Mr M R O'Brien (Trustee and Gavernar) 3 3
Mrs V Williams (Trustee and Governor) 3 3

The board provides strong governance and rigorous challenge with members bringing diverse experience and skills,
The Co-chairs of Governors also meet with the Headteacher weekly, The information provided by the school is
excellent and provides for robust discussion, questioning and debate, The Information is detailed and outlines areas
for development and improvement. The Director of Finance & Resources and deputy head loin mestings when
invited and attend sub-committee meetings. Key areas that the board has raviewed during 2022/23 have been
organisational structure and external collaborations, staff well-belng, recruitment and retention as well as future
capital invesiments. The board has closely monitored how the school has managed the industrial action that
impacted this year.

The board mests less than six times a year however all board members aiso chair or regularly attend subcommittee
meetings where matters are considered In detail. Financial information Is regularly shared and scrutinised.

Governance reviews
The Trust carries out a self-assessment annually and completes a skills and training audit when recruiting new
members are appointed. A governors' impact statemeant is produced annually and shared on the website.
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

The Local Governing body for Waldegrave School has formally met four times in the academic year from 1
September 2022 to 31 August 2023,

Attendance during the year at meefings of the local governing body was as follows:

Governors Meetings attended Out of possible

Ms A Amponsah (Appointed 11 October 2022) 3 3
Mr J Bassi 4 4
Ms E Baynton (Retired 11 October 2022) 1 1
Mr S Byrne (Resigned 21 Novembar 2022} 1 1
Mrs R Birrell {Appointed 26 September 2022; Resigned 8 May 2023} 2 2
Ms $ Davies (Appointed 28 Navember 2022) 2 3
Mrs C A Davis {Co-Chair of Governors) 4 4
Mrs N Evered (Retired 16 September 2022) 0 0
Mr A Godfrey 4 4
Mrs C Y Jones {Appointed 28 November 2022} 3 3
Mr G King 3 4
Mr M O'Brien 4 4
Ms R Pugh (Appointed 11 October 2022) 3 3
Mr A Tanner (Co-Chair of Governors) 4 4
Ms E Tongue (Headteacher) 4 4
Mr M Vigkery 1 4
Mrs V Walsh 3 4
Mrs V Willams 2 4

The Finance and Resources Committee Is a sub-committee of the main governing body. Its purpose is to assist the
declsion making of the goveming body, by enabling more detailed consideration to be given to the best means of
fulfiling the governing body's responsibility to ensure sound management of the schools’ finances and resources,
including proper planning, monitoring and probity and to make appropriate comments and recommendations on
such matters to the local governing body on a regular basis,

The Finance and Resources Committee met five times during the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023,
Attendance was as follows:

Governors Meetings attended Out of possible
Mr.) Bassl 4 5
Mr S Byrne (Resigned 21 November 2022) 0 1
WMs S Davies {Appointed 28 November 2022} 3 3
Mr C King (Vice Chalr) 5 5
Mr M O'Brien (Chalr) 5 5
Ms R Pugh (Staff Governor) 4 5
Mr A Tanner 3 5
Ms E Tongue (Headleacher) 4 5
Mrs V Williams 4 5
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Review of value for money

The accounting officer has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust delivers good value In the use of public
resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider socletal
outcomes, as well as estate safety and management, achleved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during
sach academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money can be improved, including the use
of benchmarking data where available. The accounting officer for the Trust has delivered improved value for money
during the year by:

1, Carsful spend of the additional government grants relating to the natlonal tutoring programme.,

2. Major procurements involve comparison of tenders from a range of bidders to ensure best value, the
government procurement tool is used where appropriate. A competitive tender framework has bean used
for the renawal of groundwork providers.

Contract review at each contract renewal.

Areview of internal systems, streamiining and supporting with new software packages where appropriate.
Detailed forecasting of future year budgets and including a detailed and integrated curriculum led planning
approach,

ISUIE

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed o manage tisk to a reasonable level rather than to eiiminate all risk of
failure to achiave policies, aims and objectives. It can tharsfore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-gaing process designed to identify and oriotitise
the risks to the achievement of academy trust policies, aims and objectives, to avaluate the likelinood of those risks
being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efflciently, effectively and gconamically.
The system of internal control has heen in plage in The \Waldegrave Trust for the period 1 September 2022 to 31
August 2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. Internal control takes
many forms in the Trust, this year the annual internal audit been completed by Strictly Education with parts
completed by Carsten's & Robinson Lid and Safeguarding Works Ltd.

This year, the internal review completed by Strictly Education focused on HR Compliance. Carsten's & Rabinsen
completed a sclence health and safety audit. Safeguarding Works Ltd completed a whols school safeguarding
audit, Summary reports were produced by these independent auditcrs and shared with the Finance and Resources
Committee who in turn report to the LGB, All reports concluded that appropriate and robust controls were in pace.

Capacity to handle risk

The governars have reviewed the key risks o which the Trust is exposed together with the operating, financial and
compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The trustess are of the view that there is a
formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Trust's significant risks that has been in place
for the year ended 31 August 2023 and up to the date of approval of the trustees’ annual report and finangial
statements. This process Is regularly reviewed by the Board. .

The governors have a Risk Register which Identifies Strategic and Reputational risks, Operaticnal risks, Compliance
dske and Financlal risks, the likelihood of occurrence and impact along with response and mitigating control
procedures.
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT {CONTINUED)

The risk and control framework

The Trust's system of interna! financial contrel is based on & framework of regular management information and

administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In
particular it includes:

* Comprehensive budgeting and menitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Governors;

« Regular reviews by the Finance and Resources Committee of reperts which indicate financial performance
against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes,

* Clear estates management sirategy ensuring compliance with GEMS and statutory maintenance guidance

as well as continue estates improvement through successful CIF bids and investment from the school

budget;

Setling targets to measure financial and other performance;

Clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;

Delegaticn of authority, segregation of duties and accountable budget hoiders;

Identification and management of risks;

Ofsied preparation plan regularly reviewed; and

Supnart provided by the School Improvement Parther.

. s & & w =

Examples of checks and controls for these risks were as follows:

Reducing pupil-hased funding - Pupil recruitment into both the sixth form and vear 7 is closely monitored by the
leadership team and reported to the Finance and Resources Committea,

Tight budgets - Tight long term funding environment is monitored by a defailed review of the 3 year budget and the
managament accounts at each Finance and Rescurces Committee. The school regularly reviews the ESFA bulletin
for changes in funding and the accounling officer is a member of the local schools forum.

Unfavourable Ofsted report - The latest Ofsted inspection was completed 26 September 2018 and was graded
Qutstanding. To support this status governors make regular visits to the schooi, are informed via the committees’
and the Headteacher's reports on the progress of the scheol and complete regular self-evaluation of their own
performance as governors, Senior Leadership Team regularly meet to discuss and re-evaluate. Governors and
Senior Leadership Team meet throughout the year with the School Improvement Partner.

Managing conflicts of interest
The Trust maintains a register of Interests for all members of staff involved in its financial management, as weil as

all senior feaders and budget holders. It alsc maintains a register of interests for all governors and any conflicts are
declared at the beginning cf all governor meestings.

The register of interests is referenced, as appropriate, during all purchases, The Director of Finance & Resources
has oversight of this and ts awars of any potential areas of conflict. The sshool does not maintain any joint ventures,
associate or subsidiary relationships.

Review of effectiveness

The accounting officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of Internal control, During the
year ended 31 August 2023, this review has been infermed by.

» the work of the external auditor,

* the internal scrutiny programme,

« the financial management and governance self-assessment process; and

« the work of the Senior Leadership Team within The Waldegrave Trust who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance cf the internal control framework.
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the Finance and Resources Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous
improvement of the system is in place.

Approved by order of the board of trustees on 13/11/2023 ... and signed on its behalf by:

VARV W/

Mrs, C A Davis Mr A Tanner
rustee and and Co-Chair of Governors Trustee and Co-Chair of Governors
Ms E Tongue

Accounting Officer




THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

STATEMENT OF REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As accounting officer of The Waldegrave Trust, | have considered my responsibility to notify the Trust boarg of
governors and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (‘ESFA') of material irregularity, impropriety and non-
compliance with terms and conditions of all funding, Including for estates safety and management, under the
funding agreement betwean the Trust and the Secretary of State for Education, As part of my consideration | have
had due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2022, including responsibilities for estates
safety and management,

| confirm that | and the Trust's board of trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of funds
by the Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the Trust's funding
agreement and the Academies Trust Handbook 2022.

[ confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compilance have been discovered to
date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these wili be notified to the board of trustees and
ESFA.

Diga- Laes

Ms E Tongue
Accounting Officer

13/11/2023
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES

The trustees (who are also the directors of The Waldegrave Trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible
for preparing the trustees' report (including the strategic report) and the financial statements in accordance with the
Academies Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law, the
trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its
income and expenditure, for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to:

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+ observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to
2023,

+ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reascnable and prudent;

« state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
charitable company will continue in business.

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial
and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They
are also responsible for ensuring that grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on
the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 13/11/2023...... and signed on its behalf by:

LD RV

rs C A Davis Mr A Tanner
Trustee and and Co-Chair of Governors Trustee and Co-Chair of Governors
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE WALDEGRAVE
TRUST

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Waldegrave Trust (ihe "charitable company") for the year ended 31
August 2023 which comprise the Statement of Financiai Activities, the Balance Shest, the Statement of Cash Fiows
and notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies. The financial reperting framework
that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including
FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Repubiic of Ireland" (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the
Education and Skilis Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 August 2023 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its Income and expenditure, for the year then
ended; :

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 20086; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issusd by the
Education and Skills Funding Agency.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Internaticnal Standards on Auditing (UK) (I1SAs {UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsiblities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the charitable company in accordance with the
athical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical
Standard and wa have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities In accordance with these requiremants. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basls for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustees’ use of the going concem basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
canditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the charitable company's ability to continue
as a going concern for & period of at least twelve manths from when the financial statements are authorised for
lssue,

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report,

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the fingncial statements
and our auditor's report thereon, The trustees are responsibie for the other information contained within the annual
report, Our opinion en the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extant
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Qur responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financia! stalements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstaterment in the financial
statements themselves. ', based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact,

We have nothing to report in this regard,

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
- the information given in the Trustees' Report, which includes the Directors' Report arid the Strategic Report

orepared for the purposes of company law, for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

- the Directors' Report and the Strategic Report included within the Trustees' Report have been prepared in
accordance with appiicable legal reguirements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE WALDEGRAVE
TRUST (CONTINUED)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and its environment obtained in the

course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Directors' Report or the Strategic Report
included within the Trustees' Report,

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires

us to report to you if, in cur opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adeguate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and refurns; or

- certaln disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit,

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Staternent of Trusiees' Responsibilities set out on page 22, the trustees (who act as
frustees for the charifable activities of the charitable company are also the directors of the charitable company for
the purposes of company law} are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for belng satisfied
that they give a true and falr view, and for such internal control as the frustees determine is necessary o enabie the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

" In preparing the financlal statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the charitable company’s abiiity fo
continue as a geing concern, disciosing, as applicable, matters related to geing concern and using the gaing
concern basls of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company or o cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion,
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guaraniee that an audit conducted in accordance
with 1SAs (UK} will aiways detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statemenis,

The extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, inciuding fraud
Irregularities are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. The objectives of our audit are to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding compliance with laws and regulations that have a direct effect on the
determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statemenis, to parform audit procedures to help
identify instances of non-compliance with cther laws and regulations that may have a materiat effect on the financial
statements, and to respond appropriately to |dentified or suspected nen-compliance with Jaws and regulations
identified during the audit.

In relation to fraud, the objectives of our audit are to Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the
financlal statements due to fraud, to cbtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the assessed risks of
material misstatement due to fraud through designing and implementing appropriate responses and to respond
aporopriately te fraud or suspectad fraud identified during the audit,

However, it is the primary responsibility ef management, with the oversight of those charged with governance, fo
ensure that the entity's operations are conducted in accordance with the provisions of laws and regulations and for
the prevention and detection of fraud.

In identifying and assessing risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including fraud, the audit
engagement team:

v obtained an understanding of the nature of the sector, ingluding the legal and reguiatory framewark that the
charitable company operates in and how the charitable company is complying with the legal and reguiatory
framework;

+ inguired of management, and those charged with governance, about thelr own identification and assessment of
the risks of irregularities, including any known actual, suspaected or alleged instances of fraud;

« discussed matters about non-compliance with laws and regulations and how fraud might occur including
assessment of how and where the financial statements may be susceptible to fraud,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE WALDEGRAVE
TRUST (CONTINUED)

As a result of these procedures we consider the most significant laws and regulations that have a direct impact on
the financial statements are FRS 102, Charities SORP (FRS 102), Companies Act 2006, Education and Skllls
Funding Agency’s Academies Financial Handbook, Annual Accounts Direction and tax 'egislailon, We performed
audit procedures to detect non-compliiances which may have a material impact on the financial statemenis which
included reviewing the financial statements including the Governors' Report and evaluating relevant advice received
from external advisors.

The most significant laws and regulations that have an indirect impact on the financial statements are those in
relation to the Education Inspection Framework under the Education Act 2006 (as amended), Keeping Children Safe
in Education uncer the Education Act 2002, the UK General Data Protection Regulation (UK GPPR) and the Data
Protection Act 2018, We performed audit procedures to inguire of management and those chargad with governance
whether the charitable company is in compliance with these law and regulations and Inspected corrgspondence with
reguiatory authorities,

The audit engagemant team identified the risk of management override of controls as the area where the financial
statements were most susceptible to materlal misstatement due to fraud. Audit procedures performed included but
ware not limited 1o testing manual journal entries and other acjustments, evaiuating the business rationale in
relation to significant, unusual transactions and transactions entered into outside the normal course of business.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financlal statements is lccated on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: hitps:/fwww.fre.org.uk/auditersresponsibliities. This description forms part of our
auditor's report,

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as & body, in ascordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2008. Cur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable company's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable
company and the charitable company's members as a pody, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

RSM UK Audit LLP

Kerry Gallagher (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of RSM UK Audit LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

Davidson House

Forbury Square

Reading

Berkshire

RG1 3EU

15 December 2023
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Restricted Restricted Total Total

General Fixed Asset 2023 2022
Funds Funds

£ £ £ £

- 298,808 328,744 213,070

9,492,610 - 10,002,455  §,145,601
21,973 - 21,973 23,040
2,120 - 165,644 176,120

- - 732 20

9,518,703 208,808 10,509,448 9,557,851

8,931,110 725,349 9,861,044 9,827,081
32,918 - 32,918 61,868

8,064,028 725,349 0,893,962 9,888,949

562,675  (426541) 615486  (331,088)

(219,433) 219,258 - -

{84,000) o (84,000) 3,719,000

249,242 (207,283) 531,486 3,387,902

1431860 22,263,572 24,564,441 21,176,539

Unrestricted
Funds
Notes £
Income and endowments from:
Donaticns and capital grants 3 29,938
Ch_aritable activities:
- Funding for educational operations 4 508,845
- Teaching school 4 -
Other trading activities 5 163,424
Investments 6 732
Total 893,937
Expenditure on:
Charitable activities:
- Educational operations 8 204,585
- Teaching school 8 -
Total T 204,585
Net income/(expenditure) 489,362
Transfers batween funds 18 175
Other recognised gains/(losses)
Actuarial {losses)gains on defined
benefit obligations 24 -
Net movement in funds 489,527
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward 869,009
Total funds catried forward 1,368,538

1,681,102 22,056,289 25,095,927 24,564,441
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2023

Company registration number 08130508

Fixed assets
Tangible assets

Current assets
Stocks

Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Provisions for liabilities

Net assets before defined benefit pension
scheme asset

Defined benefit pension scheme asset
Total net assets

Funds of the Trust:

Restricted funds

- Restricted fixed asset funds

- Restricted income funds

- Pension reserve

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

Notes

12

13
14

15

16

24

18

18

2023

£ £

22,056,289
102,176
443,704
4,022,513
4,568,393
(1,528,755)

3,039,638

25,095,927

25,095,927

25,095,927

22,056,289

1,681,102

23,737,391

1,358,536

25,095,927

2022

148,668
440,747
2,435,435

3,024,850

(797.981)

£

22,263,572

2,226,869

24,490,441

(8,000)

24,482,441

82,000

24,564,441

22,263,572
1,349,860
82,000

23,695,432

869,009

24,564,441

The financial statements on pages 26 to 50 were approved by the board of trustees and authorised for issue

n .13/11/2023.... and are signed on their behalf by:

Trustee

o/

Mr A Tanner

Trustee and Co-Chair of Governors
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities 21

Cash flows from investing activities
Dividends, interast and rents frem investments
Capital grants from DfE Group

Purchase of tangible fixed agsets

Net cash used in investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents in the
reporting period

. Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

2023
£ £
1,892,231
732
212,356
(518,241)
(305,153)
1,587,078
2,435,435
4,022,513

2022
£ £
502,446
20
159,652
(456,891)
(297,219)
205,227
2,230,208

2,435 435
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

1 Accounting policies

General information

The Waldegrave Trust is a private charitable company, limited by guarantee, incorporated and registered in
England and Wales. The address of its principal place of businass is glven on page 1 and the nature of lts
operations are set out in the Trustees' Report. '

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted {which have been applied conslstently, except where
noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation

The financial staiements of the Trust have been prepared under the historical cost convention in aceordance
with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland {FRS 102), the Accounting
and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommanded Practice applicable to charities preparing their
financial statements in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
ireland (FRS 102} (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by
ESFA, the Charities Act 20711 and the Companies Act 2006, The Trust is a public benefit entity under FRS 102
and has therefore applied the relevant public benefit requirements of FRS 102.

The financial statements are presented in sterling which is aiso the functional currency of the Trust.

Monetary amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest whole £1, except where otherwise
indicated.

Going concern

The governors assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast doubt on the ability of the charitable company to
continue as a going concern, The governors make this assessment In respect of a period of at least 12
months from the date of approval of these financial statements and have concluded that the Trust has
adequate resources to continue In operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no material
uncertainties about the Trust's ability to confinue as a going concern. In making their assessment, the
governors have considered the following factors,

Tha ESFA General Annual Grant income for the year ended 31 August 2023 and 31 August 2024 is expected
to be in Ine cr in excess of the current year.

Review and management of costs has resulted In a net surplus, before depreciation, being ganerated in the
year ended 31 August 2023 and surpluses are forecast in both 2024 and 2025,

As at 31 August 2023 the Trust held cash reserves of £4,022,613 and cash fiow expectations indicate that the
Trust can meet all liabiiities as they fall cue,

On this basis the Governors consider it is appropriate to prepare the financia! statements an a geing cenecemn
basis.

Income

All income is recognisad when the Trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is probable and the amount
can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the statement of financial activites on a receivable basis. The balance of income
recelved for specific purposes but not expended during the periad is shown in the relevant funds on the
balance sheet, Where income is received in advance of meeling any performance-related conditions there Is
not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and Iinciuded in credilors as
deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where antitlement occurs befere Income is
received, the income |s accrued,
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

1 Accounting policies {Continued)

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the statement of financial activities in the period for which it is
receivable, and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entittement to the grant. Unspent amounts
of capital grants are reflected In the balance sheet in the restricted flxed asset fund. Capital grants are
recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are
expended. Unspent amounts of capital grants are reflected in the balance in the restricled fixed assert fund,

Donations

Donaticns are recognised on & receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where
the recelpt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

QOther income
Other income, including the hire of facilities s recognised at fair value of the censideration received or
recelvable in the period it s receivable and to the extent the Trust has provided the goods or services.

Interest receivable
Interest recelvable s included in the statement of financial activiies on a receivable basis, and is stated
inclusive of related tax credits.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised ance there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a
third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement, and the amount of
the obligation can be measured reliably.

Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and
shared costs, including sunpoert costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs atfributable to a single
activity are allocated diractly to that activity. Shared costs which ceniribute to more than one activity and
support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis
consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and
depreciation charges are allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

Expenditure on raising funds

This Includes all expenditure incurred by the Trust to ralse funds for its charitable purposes and includes costs
of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the Trust's educaticnal operations to further its charitable aims for the benefit of
the beneficiaries, including support costs and costs relating to the governance of the Trust apportioned to
charitable activities.

All resources axpended are inclusive of Irrecoverabla VAT,
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

1 Accounting policies (Continued)

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

ltems capitalised as tangible fixed assets are carried at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for
impairment. Subsequent costs are capitalised only when it Is probable that such costs will generate future
economic benefits. All other costs of repalrs and maintanance are charged to the statement of financial
activities as incurred.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or
from tha private sector, they are Included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected
usaful economic life, Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding that require the continued
use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial
activitles and carried forward in the balance sheet, Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to
the restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been
acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangibie fixed assets other than freehold land, so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their useful lives on the following bases:

Land Not depreciated
Buildings Straight line 25 to 50 years with nil residual value
Computer sguipment Straight fine 38 months with nil residual value
Fixtures fittings and equipment Straight line 38 maonths with nil residual value

- Motor vehicles Straight line 36 months with nil residual value

A review for impairment of a fixed asset Is carried out if events or changes In circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recaverable. Shartfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets
and their recoverabla amounts are recognised as impairments, Impairment losses are recognised in the
statement of financial activities.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognlsed when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is
probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement
can be estimated reliably. Liabillties are recognised at the amount that the Trust anticipates it will pay to settle
the dabl or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the gocds of services it must provide.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Trust has an cbligation at the reporting dale as a result of a past event
which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can be estimated reflably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to setile the chligation. Where the
aeffact of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts,
discountad at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the
discount is recognised within interest payable and similar charges,

leased assels
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Stock

Educational materials are valued at the lower of cost and estimated selling price less costs to complete and
sell.

Financial instruments
The Trust has chosen to adopt Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in full in respact of financial instruments.
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

1 Accounting policies {Continued)

Financia! assets_and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Trust becomes a party to the centractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the financial instrument's contractual
obligaticns, rather than the financial instrument's legal form.

Financial assets, which include trade debtors, other debtors and accrued income, are Initially measured at
trangaction price {including transaction costs) and subsequently carried at amortised cost, being transaction
price less any amounts seltled and impairment losses,

Financial liabilittes, which include trade creditors, other creditors and accruals, are initially measured at
transaction price (including transaction costs) and subsequently carried at amertised cost, being transaction
price less any amounts settled.

Financial assets and financia! liabllities are offset only when there is a current legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts and the intention to either sattle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and seitle
the liabillty simultaneously.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual rights to cash flows expire or are settted, or
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to another party, or If some significant risks
and rewards of awnarship are retained but control of the asset has transferred to another party that is able to
sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party. A financial lability {or part thereof) is derecognised
when the obligaticn specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expirgs.

Taxation

The Trust is considered to pass the {ests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of ths Finance Act 2010 and
therefore it meets the definiton of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the
Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains recelved within categories
covered by chapter 3 part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable
Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes,

Short-term Employment Benefits
Short term employment benefits such as salaries and compensated absences (holiday pay) are recoghised as
an expense In the year in which the employees render service to the Academy Trust. The cost of any unused
holiday entitiement the Academy Trust expacts to pay in future pericds is recognised in the period the
employees’ services are rendered,

Pensions benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme ('TPS'} and the
Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS'), which are multi-employer defined benefllt schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over
employees' working lives with the Trust in such & way that the penslon cast is a substantially level percentage
of current and future pensicnable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government Actuary on the
basis of quadrennial valuations using a projected unit method, The TRPS is an unfunded multremployer
scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers, Consegquently there is insufficient information
to use defined benefit accounting, it is therefore treated as a defined confribution schems for accounting
purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate. Differences between
contributions payable in the year and contributions actually paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments,
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

1 Accounting policies (Continued)

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately. Pension scheme assets
are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basls using the projected unit credit
method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
aquivalent term and currency te the liabilities, The actuarlal valuations are obtained at least triennially and are
updated at each reperting date. The amounts charged to net income are the current service costs and the
costs of scheme intreductions, benefit changes, sattlemants and curtailments, They are included as part of
staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the statement
of financial activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on
the scheme assets, calculated by mulliplying the fair value of the schems assets at the beginning of the period
by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the inferest income on the
scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets s recognised as other recognised gains and
losses.

Actuarial gains and losses and the effect of the asset ceiling are recognised immediately as other recognised
gains and losses.

The LGS assets are managed by the scheme trustees at scheme lavel, and the determination / allocation of
assets to each individual employer in the scheme is managed by the scheme actuary. The assels arg
allocated o each employer for accounting purposes based on the valuation of the assets at the latest friennial
valuation as adjusted for subsequent contributicns received from the employer, asset returns and henefit
payments made (either on a cash baslis or actuarial basis),

The retirement benefit cbligation recognised represents the deficit or surplus in the defined benefit plans. Any
surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the
form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans.

Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Trust at the discretion of the governars,

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied o specific capital purposes imposed by
funders where the asset acquired or created Is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the funder/
donor and include grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

Agency arrangements

The Trust acts as an agent In distributing 16-19 bursary funds from the ESFA, Payments received from the
ESFA and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the statement of financial activities as the
Trust doss not have control over the charitable application of the funds. The Trust is entitled to use an
allocation towards its own administration costs and this is recognised In the stafement of financial activities.
The funds received and paid and any balances held are disclosed in note 26.

2 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Accounting estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on hisiorlcal expsrience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reascnable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimales and assumptions

The Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resuliing accounting estimates and
assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual resuits, The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a materiai adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and llabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

2 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement {Continued)

The present vaiue of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit obligation depends on a number
of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using & variety of assumptions, The assumptions used in
determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions,
which are disclosed in note 24, will impact the carrying amount of the pension fiability. Furthermore, a roll
forward approach which projects results from the latest fult actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2022
has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions obligation at 31 August 2023. Any differences between
the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying
amount of the pensfon cbligation.

Determining the existence of a minimum funding requirement for the Local Government Pensicn Scheme o
be included in the asset ceiling in measuring and recognising a surplus in the schame. This judgement is
based on an assessment of the nature of the scheme as a statutory scheme and its inherent Implied
continuance as well as the operation of the primary and secondary contributions.

3 Donations and capital grants

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds 2023 2022

£ £ £ £

Capital grants - 298,808 298,808 159,652
Other donations 29,936 - 29,936 53,418
29,935 208,808 328,744 213,070

The income from donations and capltal grants was £328,744 (2022 £213,070) of which £29,936 was
unrestricted (2022: £51,990), £- was restricted (2022: £1,428) and £298,808 was resfricted fixed assets
(2022: £159,652).
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

4 Funding for the Trust's charitable activities

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2023 2022
£ £ £ £
Funding for Trust's educational operations
DfE/ESFA grants
Genersl annual grant (GAG) - 8,387,778 8,387,778 8,062,137
Other DFE/ESFA grants:
- Pupil premium - 124,402 124,402 126,464
- Supplementary grant - 203,838 203,838 -
- Teachers pay - - - 28,417
- Teachers pension - 83,156 83,156 83,123
- Others - 78,725 78,725 149,139

§,877,809 8,877,888 8,450,280

Other government grants
Local authority grants - 564,186 564,186 304,954

COVID-19 additional funding (DfE / ESFA)

Recovery premium - 32,608 32,606 16,508
Cther DIE/ESFA COVID-18 funding - 17,919 17,919 43,623

- 50,525 50,625 60,129
Other incoming resources 508,845 - 500,845 330,238

509,845 9,492,610 10,002,455 9,145,601

Teaching school
Teaching school income - 21,873 21,973 23,040

The income from funding for charitable activities was £10,024,428 (2022: £9,168,641) of which £509,845 was
unrestricted (2022: £330,238) and £9,514,583 was restricted (2022; £8,838,403).
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

4 Funding for the Trust's charitable activities {Continued)

The Trust has been eligible to claim additional funding in the year from government support schemes in
response to the caronavirus outbreak, The funding received is shown above under COVID-19 additional
funding (DfE / ESFA).

The funding received for Coronavirus exceptional supporl covers £60,528 (2022 £60,129) of catch-up/
recovery premium income, scheol-led tutoring income and National Testing Programme for schools costs,
These costs are included in notes 7 and 8 below as appropriate,

The Trust recelved £32,606 {2022: £16,506) of funding for catch-up/recovery premium and cosls incurred in
respect of this funding totalled £32,6086 (2022; £16,5086).

The Trust received £17,819 (2022: £17,944) of funding for schocl-led tutoring and costs incurred in respect of
this funding totalled £17,91€ (2022: £17,944},

The Trust received £nil (2022: £25,6879) of funding from the National Testing Programme for scheools and cests
incurred in respect of this funding totalled £nil (2022: £25,679).

5 Other trading activities

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds 2023 2022

£ £ £ £

Hire of facilities 153,424 - 153,424 147 545
Teaching school - 2,120 2,120 28,575

163,424 2,120 165,644 176,120

The income from other trading activities was £155,544 (2022: £176,120) of which £153,424 was unrestricled
(2022: £147,545) and £2,120 was restricted (2022: £28,575),

6 Investment income

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds 2023 2022

£ £ £ £

Interest from short term deposits 732 - 732 20

The income from funding for investment income was £732 (2022: £20) of which £732 was unrestricted (2022
£20},
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

7 Expenditure

The expenditure on charitable activities was £9,893,962 (

Non-pay expenditure Total Total
Staff costs Premises Other 2023 2022
£ £ £ £ £
Academy's educaticnal cperations
- Direct costs 5,721,273 - 733,214 6,454 487 6,258,334
- Allocated support costs 1,689,462 1,262,718 584,387 3,406,657 3,668,747
Teaching school
- Direct costs 20,914 - 2,773 23,687 50,435
- Allocated support costs 8,753 - 478 9,231 11,433
7,340,392 1,262,718 1,280,852 9,893,962 9,888,949
Net income/{expenditure) for the year includes: 2023 2022
£ £
Operating lease rentals 575 575
Net interest on defined benefit pension liabllity {9,000} 49,000
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 725,524 698,488
Fees payable to RSM UK Audit LLP and its associates In respect of hoth audit
and non-audit services are as follows:
- Audit 23,100 19,250
- Qther services 11,148 10,625
- Other audit services 3,388 3,080
8 Charitable activities
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2023 2022
£ £ £ £
Direct costs
Educaticnal operations 204,410 6,250,077 6,454 487 6,258,334
Teaching school - 23,687 23,687 50,435
Support costs
Educational operations 178 3,406,382 3,406,587 3,668,747
Teaching school - 9,231 9,231 11,433
204,585 9,689,377 9,893,962 9,888,049

2022 £9,888,049) of which £204,685 was

unrestricted (2022; £307,600), £8,964,028 was restricted (2022: £8,882 861) and £725,349 was restricted

fixed assets (2022; £698,488).
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B Charitable activities (Continued)

Teaching Educational Total Total
school  operations 2023 2022
£ £ £ £

Analysis of support costs
Support staff costs 8,753 1,688,452 1,698,205 1,877,639
Depreciation - 725,624 725,524 698,488
Technology costs - 55,914 55,814 9,264
Premises costs - 537,194 537,194 520,028
Legal costs - 8,714 8,714 8,768
Other support costs 478 452,125 452,603 428,092
Governance costs - 37,634 37,634 37,903

§,231 3,408,557 3,415,788 3,580,180

9 Staff
Staff costs

Staff costs during the year were:
2023 2022
£ £
Wages and salarles 5,390,215 5,357,680
Sccial security costs 572,061 592,829
Pension costs 1,202,601 1,698,435
Staff costs - employees 7,184,877 7,646,044
Agancy staff cosls 175,615 55,178
7,340,392 7,702,122
Staff development and other staff costs 93,041 20,178
Total staff expenditure 7,433,433 7,722,300

Staff numbers
The average number of persons employed by the Trust during the year was as follows.

2023 2022

Number Number

Teachers 81 81
Administration and support 70 55
Management 10 10
161 156
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"

Staff (Continued)

Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs and employer
nationa!l insurance contributions) exceeded £60,000 was:

2023 2022

Number Number

£60,001 - £70,000 6 3
£70,001 - £80,000 - 3
£80,001 - £20,000 2 -
£100,001 - £110,000 - 1
£110,001 - £120,000 1 -

Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Trust comprise the governcrs and the senior management team as
listad on page 1. The total amount of key management personnel benefits {including employer pension
contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for thelr
services to the Trust was £902,463 {2022: £871,521).

Governors’ remuneration and expenses

One governor (2022; one governer) has been paid remuneration gr has received cther benefits from an
employment with the Trust. The headteacher and other staff governors only receive remuneration in respect of
services they provide undertaking the roles of headteacher and staff members under their contracts of
employment, and not in respect of thair services as governars.

The value of governors remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

Mg E Tongue (accounting officer and Headteacher):
* Remuneraticn £110,785 (2022: £103,028)
+ Employer's pension contributions £26,145 (2022: £24,397)

During the year, expenseg payments totalling £nil (2022: £nif) were reimbursed or paid directly to no governors
{2022: no governors),

Other related party transactions invelving the governors are set out within note 25,
Governors and officers’ insurance

In accordance with normal commercial practice, the Trust has purchased insurance to protect governors and
officers from claims arising from nagligent acts, errors or omissions oceurring whilst on Trust business, Tha
insurance provides cover up to £1,000,000 on any one claim and the cost for the year endsed 31 August 2023
was £31,285 (2022; £28,087). In addition, the Trust has cyber insurance at a premium cost of £4,384 (2022
£3,930). The cost of this insurance is included in the total Insurance cost.
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13

14

15

Tangible fixed assets

Cost

At 1 September 2022
Additions

At 31 August 2023
Depreciation

At 1 September 2022
Charge for the year
At 31 August 2023

Net book value
At 31 August 2023
At 31 August 2022

Stock

Educational materials

Debtors

Trade debtors
Other debtors

Prepayments and accrued income

Creditors; amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors
Qther taxation and social security
Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income (see note 17)

Land and Computer Fixtures Motor Total

buildings equipment fittings and vehicles
equipment

£ £ £ £ £

27,878,905 59,271 160,031 18,795 27 927,092

261,350 166,291 90,600 - 518,241

27,940,345 235,662 250,631 18,785 28,445,333

5,474,191 22,240 148,284 18,795 5,663,620

689,711 29,740 6,073 - 725,524

8,163,902 51,980 154,367 18,795 6,388,044

21,776,443 183,582 96,264 - 22,056,289

22,204,804 47,031 11,737 - 22,263,572

2023 2022

£ £

102,178 148,568

2023 2022

£ £

41,448 44,289

71,493 133,043

330,763 266,415

443,704 440,747

2023 2022

£ £

37,140 140,045

138,281 145,920

167,137 155,482

1,186,187 356,534

1,528,755 797,981
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17

Provisions for liabilities

The Trust has recognised a provision of £nil (2022: £8,000) with regards ic the calculation of holiday pay
relating to term time only employee confracts, Specifically of concern is a deficiency in the calculation of
holiday entitiement for Term Time Only staff contracts where it is strongly believed there was an under-
calculation of entitlement,

The Trust has Initiatec a project to review every impacted contract and ensure each team member is allocated
thefr correct contractual holiday entitlement on a fair basis. As part of this process it is accepted by Trustae's
that team members should be refrospectively reimbursed for underpayments in relation to the under-
calculation of holiday entittement. This provision is made to address that abligation,

Deferred income

2023 2022

£ £
Deferred income is included within:
Creditors dus within one year 922,688 115,812
Deferred income at 1 September 2022 115,812 110,241
Released from previous years (115,812) (110,241}
Resources deferred in the year 022,688 115,812
Deferred income at 31 August 2023 922,688 115,812

At the balance shest date the Academy Trust was holding funding received in advance for GAG income,
bursary income, business rates relief income for periods up to March 2024, schocl trips and for other small
grant balances,
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Funds

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Other DfE/ESFA granis;

~ Pupil premium

- Teachers' pension

- Others

Other DfE group grants
Catch-up premium

Other DFE/ESFA COVID-18
funding

Other government grants
Teaching school

Other restricted funds
Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds
Inherited on conversion

DfE group capital grants
Capital expenditure from GAG
Local authority funding

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted funds
General funds

Total funds

Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September losses and 31 August
2022 Income Expenditure transfers 2023

£ £ £ £ £
1,207,537 8,387,778 (7,834,651) (219,433) 1,541,231
- 124,402 {124 ,402) - -

- 83,156 (83,158) - -

- 282,563 (282,563) -

- - 6,373 - 6,373

- 32,606 {32,806) - -

- 17,919 {(17,919) -

- 564,186 {564,1886) - -

146,868 24,083 (32,918) - 138,041
{4,543) - - - {4,543)
52,000 2,000 {84,000} -
1,431,860 9,516,703 (8,964,028) {303,433) 1,681,102
15,087,590 - {296,760) - 14,800,830
1,845,192 298,808 {88,189) - 2,056,811
385,807 - {48,640} 219,258 526,525
4,564,883 - {291,760} - 4,673,123
22,263,572 298,808 {725,349) 219,258 22,056,289
23,695,432 9,815,511 {9,689,377) {84,175) 23,737,301
869,009 693,937 {204,585) 175 1,358,536
24,664,441 10,509,448 (9,893,962) (84,000) 25,095,927
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Funds (Continued)

The specific purposes for which the funds are tc be applied are as follows:

The General Annual Grant (GAG) represents the core funding for the educational activities of the school that
has been provided to the Trust via the Education & Skills Funding Agency by the Department for Education,
The General Annual Grant Fund has been set up because the GAG must be used for the normal running
costs of the academies. Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Trust was nof subject to
a limit on the amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2023.

The other DFE/ESFA fund includes the restricted pupil premium income received for the purposes of
supperting children who have been eligible for free school meals at any point in the last six years. Other
funding included within the other DE/ESFA fund relates to teachers' pay grants, teachers' pensicn grants and
other grants. The relevant expenditure incurred is recorded through this fund,

The Trust has been eligible to c¢laim additional funding in the year from government support schemes in
response to the corcnavirus outbreak. The funding received is shown above under Other DFE / ESFA
COVID-19 funding.

The funding received for coronavirus exceptional support covers £50,525 (2022; £60,129) of catch-up/
racovery pramium, school-led tutoring and National Testing Programme for schools costs. These costs are
inciuded in notes 7 and 8 as appropriate.

The Trust received £17,919 {2022; £17,944) of funding for schocl-led tutoring, £32,606 (2022: £16,508) of
funding for catch-up premium and £nil {(2022; £25,879) of funding from the National Testing Programme for
schocls.

The teaching school fund represents grant funding received from the National College for Teaching and
Leadership {NCTL) for core activities and for School Direct trainees, in the Trusi's role as a designated
National Teaching School. It also generates its own income streams from the NQT programme and hosted
tralning courses, The relevant restricted expenditure Is then also recarded through this fund.

The other restricted income fund represents all sundry sources of restricted income from various sources that
are individually immaterial in value, The relevant restricted expenditure is then also recorded through this
fund.

The pensicn reserve represents the separately identifiable pension scheme deficit inherited from ihe local
authority upon conversion to academy trust status, and through which all the pension scheme movements are
recognisad,

The Inherited fixed assets fund has been set up to recognise the tangible assets gifted to the Trust upon
conversion which represent the school sites including the long leaseheld land and buildings and all material
items of plant and machinery includad therein. Depreciation charged on those inherited assets is allocated to
the fund.

DfE/ESFA gapital grants are mads up of the CIF fund and the devolved capital fund. The restricted ACMF fund
has been set up to manage the restricted capltal money awarded to the Trust from the Academies Capital
Maintenance Fund to fund two spscific refurbishment projects, The Devolved Capital fund represents the
restricted devolved capital income awarded to the Trust and the relevant restricted expenditure recorded
against this,

Unrestricted funds represent those rasources which may be used fowards meeting any of the charitable
abjects of the Trust at the discretion of the governors,

In the current year, £219,433 (2G22; £279,039) was transferred from restricted General Annuai Grant funds to
Capital expenditure from GAG funds to cover capital expenditure incurred during the year, In addition, £175
(2022: £nil) was transferred from unrestricted general funds to DfE group capital grants to cover capital
axpenditure incurred during the year,
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Funds {Continued)

Funds prior year

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Other DIE/ESFA grants:

- Pupi premlum

- Teachers' pay

- Teachers' pension

- Others

Catch-up prernium

Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19
funding

Other government grants
Teaching school

Other restricted funds
Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds
Inherited on conversion

DfE group capital grants
Capital expenditure from GAG
Local authorlty funding

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted funds
General funds

Total funds

Balance af Gains, Balance at
1 September losses and 31 August
2021 Income Expenditure transfers 2022
£ £ £ £ £
1,001,206 8,062,137 (7,6558,767) {297,039} 1,207,637

- 126,464 (126,464) -

- 29,417 {29,417) -

- 83,123 {83,123)
- 149,139 (149,139} -
- 16,5086 {16,508)

- 43,623 {43,623) - -
- 304,954 (304,954) - -
157,119 51,815 (61,868) - 146,866
{5,871) 1,428 - - (4,643)
(3,128,000) - (509,000) 3,719,000 82,000
(1,975,648) 8,868,408 (8,882,861) 3,421,981 1,431,880
15,394,350 - {206,760} - 15,097,5S0
1,785,170 159,652 {79,630} - 1,845,192
82,206 - {30,338) 297,039 355,907
5,256,643 - {291,760) - 4,964,883
22,505,369 159,652 (698,488) 287,039 22,283,672
20,529,723 9,028,058 (9,5681,349) 3,719,000 23,695,432
646,816 529,793 {307,600} - 869,009
21,176,539 9,557,851 {9,888,949) 3,719,000 24,564,441
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20

Analysis of net assets between funds

Fund balances at 31 August 2023 are
represented by:

Tangible fixed assets
Current agsefs
Current liabllitles

Total net assets

Fund balances at 31 August 2022 are
represented by:

Tangible fixed assets
Current assels
Current liabilities
Provisions for liabilities
Pension scheme asset

Total net assets

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Funds General Fixed asset Funds
Funds Funds

£ £ £ £

- “ 22,056,289 22,056,289

1,358,636 3,209,857 - 4,568,393
- (1,528,755) - (1,528,755)

1,358,536 1,681,102 22,056,289 25,095,927
Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total
Funds General Fixed asset Funds

£ £ £ £

- - 22,263,572 22,263,572

869,009 2,185,841 - 3,024,850
- {797,981 - {797,981)
- (8,000} - (8,000)

- 82,000 - 82,000

869,009 1,431,860 22,263,572 24,564,441

Long-term commitments, including operating leases

Operating leases

At 31 August 2023, the total of the Trust's future minimum lease payments under non-canceliable operating

leases was;

Amounts due within one year
Amcunts due between one and five years

2023 2022
£ £
575 876
- 576
575 1,150
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22

23

24

Reconciliation of net iIncome/(expenditure) to net cash flow from operating activities

2023 2022
Notes £ £
Net income/{expenditure) for the reporting period (as per the
statement of financial activities) 615,486 (331,008)
Adjusted for:
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income {298,808) (159,652)
Interest receivable 6 (732) {20)
Pension costs less contributions payable 24 7,000 460,000
Pension scheme finance (income)/caosts 24 {9,000) 49,000
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 725,624 698,488
{Decrease)/increase in provisions 16 {8,000) 8,000
Movements in working capital:
Decrease/(increase) in stocks 46,492 {71,244)
Decrease/(increase) in debtors 83,495 {207 468)
Increase in creditors 730,774 56,440
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,892,231 502,446
Analysis of changes in net funds
1 September  Cash flows 31 August
2022 2023
£ £ £
Cash 2,435,435 1,587,078 4,022,613

Members' liability

Each member of the charitabla company undertakes to confribute to the assats of the company in the event of
it being wound up while he or she is a member, or within one year after he or she ceases to be a member,
such amount as may be required, not exceading £10 for the debts and lighilities contracted before he or she
ceases to be a member,

Pension and similar obligations

The Trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pensicn Scheme England and
Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff, and the Local Government Pension Scheme {L.GPS8) for non-
teaching staff, which is managed by London Boreugh of Richmond Upon Thames, Both are multi-employer
defined benefit schames,

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2020, and that of the LGPS
related to the period ended 31 March 2022,

Contributions amouniing to £139,513 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2023 (2022: £142,571) and
are included within creditors.
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Pension and similar obligations (Continued)
Teachers' Pension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statufory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers’ Pensions 2014, Membership is automatic for teachers in academies. All teachars have the option to
opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a 'pay as you go' basis - these contributions
along with those made hy employers are credited to the Exchsquer. The Trust has accounted for its
contributions to the scheme as if It were a defined contribution schemea. The Trust has set out below the
information available on the scheme,

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2023 published
by HM Treasury avery 4 years. The aim of the review Is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial
scheme valuaticns are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and
many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TFS was carried out as at 31 March 2020 In
accordance with The Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2023 and the
Employer Contribution Rate was assessed using agreed assumptions in line with the Directions and was
accepted at the original assessed rate as there was no cost contrel mechanism breach.

The valuaticn report was published by the Department for Education on 26 Qctober 2023,

The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

+ Total scheme liabilities for service (the capital sum needed at 31 March 2020 to meet the stream of
future cash flows in respect of benefits earned) of £262 billion

¢ Value of notional assets (estimated future contributions together with the proceeds from the notional
investments held at the valuation date) of £222 billion

* Noticnal past service deficit of £39.8 hillion (2016 £22 billion)

* Discount rate Is 1.7% in excess of CPl (2016 2.4% in excess of CPI} (this changs has had the
greatest financtal significance)

As a result of the valuation, new employer contribltion rates have been set at 28.6% of pensionable pay from
1 April 2024 until 31 March 2027 (compared to 23.88% under the previous valuation including a 0.08%
administration levy).

The employer's penslon costs paid te the TRPS in the period amounted to £875,274 (2022 £930,435).

lLocal Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered
funds. The total contributions are as noted below. The agreed contribution rates for future vears are 24.1% for
employers and 5.5% ~ 10.5% for employees,

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to & guarantee that, in the event
of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came inte force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the
Pepartment for Educaticn reaffirmed its commitment to the guarantee, with a parliamentary minute published
on GOV.UK.
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Total contributions made
Employer's centributions
Employees’ centributions

Total contributions

Principal actuarial assumptions

2023 2022

£ £
420,000 310,000
90,000 83,000
510,000 393,000

Ths following information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31 March 2022 updated to 31

August 2023 by a qualified independent actuary,

Rate of increase in salaries
Rate of increase for pensicns In payment/inflation
Discount rate for scheme liabilitiss

2023
%

3.85
2.85
5.35

2022
%

4.0
3.0
4.25

The current mortality assumptions include sufficlent allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The

assumed life expactations on retirement age 65 are:

Retiring today

- Males

- Females

Retiring in 20 years
- Males

- Females

The Trust's share of the assets in the scheme

Equities
Bonds
Gllts
Cash
Property

Total fair value of assets

The actual return on scheme assets was £(1,186,000) (2022: £{500,000)).

2023 2022
Years Years
207 21.0

23.2 23,5

22,0 223

24.6 24.9
2023 2022
Fair value Fair value
£ £
3,738,000 4,545,000
1,041,000 543,000
- 75,000

944,000 381,000
800,000 865,000
6,623,000 6,409,000
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Pension and similar obligations {Continued)

Amount recognised in the statement of financial activities

Current service cost
Net interest cost
Administration expenses

Total operating charge

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations

At 1 September 2022
Current service cost
Interest cost

Employee contributions
Actuarial gain

Henefits paid

At 31 August 2023

Changes in the fair value of the Trust’'s share of scheme assets

At 1 September 2022

Interest income

Return cn plan assets {excluding net interest on the net defined pension liability)
Employar contributions

Employee contributions

Benefits paid

At 31 August 2023

Present value of defined banefit obligations
Fair value of plan assets

Net asset
Restricticn to level of asset ceiling

Net ligbility recognised in the balance sheet

2023
£

427,000
(9,000)

2022
£

766,000
49,000
4,000

418,000

819,000

2023
£

6,327,000
427,000
268,000

90,000
(1,379,000)
(116,000)

5,617,000

2023
£

6,409,000
277,000
(457,000)
420,000
90,000
(116,000)

6,623,000

(5,617,000)
5,623,000
1,008,000

(1,008,000}
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25

26

Pension and similar obligations (Continued)

The value of the college’s share of net assets has been restricted due to the effect of the asset calling being
the maximum value of the present of the economic benefits available in the form of the unconditional right to
reduced contributions from the plan. A corresponding charge has been made to other comprehensive income
in the period,

Related party transactions

Qwing to the nature of the Trust and the composition of the board of governors being drawn from local public
and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations In which a member of the
board of governars may have an interest, All transactions involving such crganisations are conducted in
accardance with the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbock, including notifying ESFA of all
fransactions made on or after 1 Aprii 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the Trust's
financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party transactions,

No related party transactions tock place in the period of account other than certain governors' remuneration
and expenses already disclosed in note 10,

Key management personnel compensation disclosure is included in note 9.
Agency arrangements

The Trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for ESFA, In the accounting period
ending 31 August 2023, the Trust received £86,478 (2022; £52613) and disbursed £86,478 (2022:
£89,159) from the fund. An ameount of £9,299 (2022: £9,289) is Included in cther creditors relating to
undistributed funds that are repayable o ESFA, ’
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON
REGULARITY TO THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS
FUNDING AGENCY

Conclusion

We have carried out an engagement in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 30 September
2020 and further to the requirements of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA') as includad in the extant
Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting Accountants of Academy Trusts, to obtaln limited
assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by The Waldegrave Trust during the
period 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have been applied to the purpeses identified by Parliament and the
financial transactions conform to the authorities which gavern them.

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the pericd 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have net been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do net conform to the authorities which
govern them.

Basis for conclusion

The framework that has been applied is set out In the extant Framewark and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountanis of Academy Trusts. We are independent of The Waldegrave Trust in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are applicable to this engagement and we have fulfilled our ethical requirements in
accordance with these requirements. We believe the assurance evidence we have obtained is sufficient to provide
a basis for our conclusion,

Responsihilities of The Waldegrave Trust's accounting officer and trustees

The accounting officer is responsible, under the reguirements of The Waldegrave Trust's funding agreement with
the Secretary of State for Education dated 20 October 2011 and the Acadsmy Trust Handbook, extant from 1
September 2022, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received are applied for the purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial fransactions conform ta the authorities which govern them. The
acceunting officer is also responsible for preparing the Statement of Regularity, Propriety and Compliance. The
trustees (who are also the directors cf the charltable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for
the proper conduct and financial operation of The Waldegrave Trust and appointment of the ascounting officer.

Reporting Accountant's responsibilities for reporting on regularity

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdem by cur profession’s ethical guidance
and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of
the extant Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting Accountants of Academy Trusts,

The objective of a limited assurance engagemant is to perform such proceduras as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity. Alimited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reascnable assurance engagament and
the procedures performed vary in nalure and timing from, and are less in extent than for a reasonable assurance
engagement; consequently a limited assurance engagement does not enable us fo obtain assurance that we would
become aware of all significant matters that might be identified In a reasonable assurance engagement.
Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all
material respects, expenditure dishursed and income received during the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August
2023 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to
the authorities which govern them,

Qur work included identification and assessment of the design and operational effectiveness of the controls, policies
and procedures that have been implemented to ensure compliance with the framework of authorities including the
specific requirements of the funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education, the Academies Financial
Handbook 2022 published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency and high level financial control areas where
we identified a material risk of irregularity is likely to arise. It also included areas assessed as presenting a higher
risk of impropriety.  We undertook detailed testing, on a sample basis, based on the identified areas where a
material irregularity is fikely to arise, or potentlal Impropriety where such areas are in respect of controls, policies
and progedures that apply lo classes of transactions, Qur work was undertaken with due regard to the 'Evidence to
support conclusion on regularity’ guidance in the extant Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting
Accountants of Academy Trusts,

Thig work was Integrated with our audit on the financlal statements and evidence was also derlved from the conduct
of that audit to the extent it supports the regularity conciusion.




INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON
REGULARITY TO THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS
FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED)

Use of our report

This report is made solely to The Waldegrave Trust and the ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement
letter dated 30 September 2020, Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the The Waldegrave Trust
and the ESFA those matiers we are raquired to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than The Waldegrave Trust and the
ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

RSM UK Audit LLP

RSM UK Audit LLP
Chartered accountants
Davigdson House
Forbury Square
Reading

Berkshire

RG1 3EU

Dated; .15 December 2023
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